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Chairman's Statement

Dear Shareholders,

This past year was a challenging year to 

mobile handset industry players. On one hand, 

the global sales of mobile handset continued 

to grow at a fast pace and reached 1 billion 

units. On the other hand, the ever-advancing 

technologies and the fierce market competition 

shortened the life cycle of the products, 

narrowed the average profit margin and created 

tough challenges to the players in the industry.

To counter the intensively competitive business 

environment, the Group continued to strengthen 

its core competitiveness through extending its 

value-added services and full scale end-to-

end service solutions available to customers. 

Since late 2005, the Group launched new 

product lines and started to offer MP3 and 

other portable multimedia players as well as 

original design manufacturer product solutions 

to our customers. In early 2006, the Group 

entered into the product maintenance services 

agreement with the Philips Group, pursuant 

to which the Group provides maintenance 

services for Philips branded handsets during 

the after sales warranty period. In addition, the 

Group set up the Mould and Tooling Centre, 

Product Research and Development Centre 

“We endeavour to promote the core 

value of our Group, and to advance 

our position in the global electronics 

industry so as to maximise the 

shareholders return as a whole........”

Chen Zhaoxiong  |  Chairman
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and the Logistics Centre during the year to 

further enhance the business efficiency and 

streamline the operation flow. Our current 

business profiles not only enabled the Group 

to integrate vertically its operation, but also 

establish a comprehensive industry value chain 

to accommodate the increasing customers' 

need for complete service solutions.

In February 2007, China Electronics 

Corporation ("CEC"), the controlling shareholder 

of the Company, announced the acquisition of 

the mobile handset business from the Philips 

Group. Leveraged with CEC's vast industrial 

resources and strong market experience, we 

expect the acquisition will further enhance 

the market position of Philips branded mobile 

handsets. Looking forward, we will continue to 

work closely with CEC and through maximising 

the synergies between the two parties, the 

management is endeavour to promote the 

Group's mobile handset business as one of the 

major player in the world.

In parallel to the strengthening of the existing 

core business, the Group will proactively pursue 

new investment opportunities. Our objective is 

to advance the Group as a leading provider of 

information technology and electronics products 

and value-added services. The management is 

ambitious to capitalise the rapid growth of the 

global electronics and communication product 

market, and maximise the Group’s return as a 

whole.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank all 

staff members for their contribution and effort 

in the past year. I would also like to express 

our most sincere gratitude to our shareholders 

and business partners for their confidence and 

continued support.

Sincerely yours,

Chen Zhaoxiong
Chairman

23 March 2007
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Business Review

The Group has been operating under a 

challenging business environment throughout 

2006. Faced with fierce competition, the Group 

has been successful in sustaining its sales 

volume through diversification of its products 

and services provided to our customers. During 

the year under review, the Group’s original 

design manufacturer (“ODM”) product line 

continued to perform well. Sales of owned 

branded and other ODM products in 2006 grew 

by 19% to 3.1 million units, largely attributable 

to the new series of Philips branded products 

introduced since the second half of 2005 

whereby 1.2 million units were supplied this 

year. The Group had also been successful in 

broadening its customer base in other branded 

original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) 

products in which sales grew by nearly 2 times 

to 1.8 million units. However, sales of Philips 

branded OEM products have been reduced as 

more products are supplied on an ODM basis 

this year. The overall sales of Philips branded 

products had been dropped by 10% to 5.4 

million units. Offset by the overall reduction in 

sales of Philips branded products, the Group 

recorded an aggregate sale of 8.4 million units 

of mobile handsets and portable multimedia 

players in 2006, a mild decrease of 2% as 

compared to 8.6 million units last year.

During the year under review, turnover of 

the Group declined by 26% to HK$3,549.3 

million from the corresponding period last 

year, primarily due to a greater proportion of 

the products being shifted to low to mid-end 

products this year. To counter the unfavourable 

operating environment, the Group implemented 

various measures including stringent cost 

control and inventory control policies to 

minimise the overall impact. In addition to the 

encouraging development in the provision 

of ODM solution and after sales product 

maintenance services which brings in good 

improvement to the overall profit margin, the 

gross profit for the year was HK$232.3 million, 

representing a mild increase of 1% over last 

year.

The profit attributable to equity holders for the 

year dropped by 13% to HK$43.3 million (2005:

HK$49.9 million). Earnings per share for the 

year was HK3.99 cents (2005: HK4.61 cents).

The directors proposed a 2006 final dividend 

of HK$0.016 per share (2005: HK$0.02 

per share) amounting to a total dividend of 

HK$17.3 million in cash, which is subject to the 

approval by the shareholders of the Company 

at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Capital Resources and Liquidity

The Group finances its operations primarily 

by internal resources and short-term bank 

borrowings. As at 31 December 2006, 

the Group had cash and cash equivalents 

amounted to HK$419.8 million (2005: 

HK$306.4 million) which were primarily 

denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi 

and United States dollars.

As at 31 December 2006, the Group did 

not have any outstanding short-term bank 

borrowings (2005: HK$230.8 million). The total 

bank facilities available to the Group were RMB 

1 billion. The Group did not have any pledged 

assets or guarantee as at the end of 2006 

(2005: nil).

As at 31 December 2006, the Group had net 

current assets of HK$516.3 million (2005: 

HK$470.7 million). The overall gearing ratio, 

which is calculated as the total liabilities over 

total assets of the Group, was 54.8% (2005: 

70.6%).

The Group’s exports sales are predominantly 

invoiced in United States dollars and its 

domestic sales are invoiced in Renminbi. 

The Group imports some of its raw materials 

and production and testing equipment from 

overseas suppliers which are paid in United 

States dollars, Japanese Yen and Euro. The 

Group will make use of hedging contracts, 

when appropriate, to leverage the risk of 

foreign exchange fluctuation arising from its 

operations.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital 
Commitment

As at 31 December 2006, the Group had 

contracted but not provided for capital 

commitment of HK$1.3 million (2005: HK$3.2 

million) for the acquisition of fixed assets and 

intangible assets. The Group did not have any 

material contingent liabilities outstanding as at 

31 December 2006 (2005: nil).

Employee and Remuneration 
Policies

As at 31 December 2006, the Group had 

2,850 (2005: 3,500 employees) employees, 

the majority of whom were based in China. 

Personnel expenses during the year were 

HK$149.1 million (2005: HK$139.5 million).

The Group recognises the importance of high 

calibre and competent staff and has a strict 

recruitment policy and performance appraisal 

scheme. Remuneration packages are largely in 

line with industry practices, and are formulated 

on the basis of performance and experience 

and will be reviewed regularly. Bonus and other 

merit payments are linked with the performance 

of the Group and of the individuals as incentive 

to optimise performance. The Company has 
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in place a share option scheme, pursuant 

to which share options may be granted to 

selected personnel of the Group, with a view 

to encouraging employees to work towards 

enhancing the value of the Group.

Continuing Connected 
Transactions

On 21 January 2006, the Group’s principal 

operating subsidiary, Shenzhen Sang Fei 

Consumer Communications Company Limited 

(“Sang Fei”), entered into a maintenance 

services agreement (“Maintenance Services 

Agreement”) with Philips (China) Investment 

Company Limited (“Philips China”), whereby 

Sang Fei will provide mobile handsets 

maintenance services to Philips China. The term 

of the Maintenance Services Agreement is for 

one year commencing 1 January 2006. Upon 

expiry of the one-year term, the Maintenance 

Services Agreement may be extended for one 

year unless either party objects. The price of 

the maintenance services will be determined 

after arm’s length negotiations between the 

parties with reference to the estimated costs 

to be incurred by Sang Fei for the provision of 

the maintenance services plus a service charge 

which is determined in accordance with market 

rates. The annual cap as set for the aggregate 

consideration to be received by Sang Fei from 

Philips China in relation to the provision of 

maintenance services was RMB60 million.

As the Philips Group owns 25% interest in Sang 

Fei, the transactions contemplated under the 

Maintenance Services Agreement constitutes 

the continuing connected transactions of 

the Company. China Electronics Corporation 

(“CEC”), as the controlling shareholder 

holding 74.98% interest in the Company, has 

approved the Maintenance Services Agreement 

and the continuing connected transactions 

contemplated thereunder by way of written 

approval.

The Maintenance Services Agreement has 

been renewed automatically in accordance with 

its terms in 2007 and Sang Fei will continue to 

provide mobile handsets maintenance services to 

Philips China under the renewed Maintenance 

Services Agreement. The pricing terms will be 

the same as those previously adopted by the 

parties. The expected consideration receivable 

by Sang Fei from Philips China in 2007 under 

the renewed Maintenance Services Agreement 

was RMB25 million. Details of the renewed 

Maintenance Services Agreement were 

included in the announcement of the Company 

dated 5 March 2007.

On 3 March 2006, Sang Fei entered into a 

plastic supply agreement (“Plastic Supply 

Agreement”) with Shenzhen Sang Da Baili 

Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Baili”), whereby Sang 

Fei will purchase from Baili the plastic parts 

used for the manufacture of mobile handsets. 

The Plastic Supply Agreement is for a term of 

3 years commencing from 1 April 2006. The 

price of the plastic parts supplied by Baili to 

Sang Fei under the Plastic Supply Agreement is 

determined after arm’s length negotiation with 

reference to market rates. The pricing terms 

will be no less favourable than those offered 

to Sang Fei by other third party suppliers. The 

Company estimated that the aggregate amount 

of consideration to be paid by Sang Fei to Baili 

for the purchase of plastic parts for the nine 

months ended 31 December 2006, for the 

two financial years ending 31 December 2007 

and 2008 and for the three months ending 31 

March 2009 to be RMB43.5 million, RMB104.5 

million, RMB120 million and RMB30 million 

respectively.

As Baili is a subsidiary of CEC, the transactions 

contemplated under the Plastic Supply 

Agreement constitutes the continuing 

connected transactions of the Company. 

The transactions have been approved by the 

shareholders in the special general meeting 

held on 21 April 2006.

On 3 July 2006, Sang Fei entered into a 

tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement”) 

with Great Wall Technology Company 

Limited (“Great Wall Technology”) and China 

Great Wall Computer (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 

(“Shenzhen Great Wall”). Pursuant to the 

Tenancy Agreement, Great Wall Technology and 

Shenzhen Great Wall agreed to lease to Sang 

Fei the factory premises situated in 4th Floor, 

Factory Building No.1, Great Wall Technology 

Building, No. 3 Kefa Road, Technology and 

Industrial Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen 

City, PRC for three years commencing from 

11 August 2006 and expiring on 10 August 

2009 (both days inclusive), at a monthly rental 

of RMB204,296.75 and management fee of 

RMB32,103.77. In addition, Shenzhen Great 

Wall will charge Sang Fei for the electricity and 

water used by Sang Fei’s factory premises on 

an actual consumption basis at cost.

As Great Wall Technology and Shenzhen Great 

Wall are subsidiaries of CEC, the transaction 

contemplated under the Tenancy Agreement 

constitutes the continuing connected 

transaction of the Company. The annual cap as 

set for the aggregate rentals and management 

fees payable by Sang Fei under the Tenancy 

Agreement were RMB1.2 million for the five 

months ended 31 December 2006, RMB2.9 

million for the two financial years ending 31 

December 2007 and 2008 and RMB1.8 million 

for the eight months ending 31 August 2009 
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respectively. Details of the transaction were 

included in the announcement of the Company 

dated 15 September 2006.

On 21 December 2006, Sang Fei and CEC 

entered into a supplemental business services 

agreement (“Business Services Agreement”) 

whereby Sang Fei will supply products, 

samples and raw materials to CEC and its 

group companies (“CEC Group”) and CEC 

Group will supply raw material and provide 

various support services including canteen 

services and renovation services to Sang Fei. 

On the same date, Sang Fei and CEC entered 

into a supplemental processing agreement 

(“Processing Agreement”) whereby Sang Fei 

will secure complete SMA production lines 

(together with operational management rights) 

from CEC Group.

The products, samples and raw materials 

supplied under the Business Services 

Agreement to the CEC Group will be priced 

in accordance with their models and 

specifications. The price will be determined 

after arm’s length negotiations between the 

parties with reference to market rates, and will 

be no less favorable than those offered to other 

third party customers of Sang Fei. The price 

of the raw materials and support services to 

be provided by the CEC Group to Sang Fei will 

be determined after arm’s length negotiations 

between the parties with reference to market 

rates, and the price offered to Sang Fei will 

be no less favorable than those offered by 

other third party suppliers of Sang Fei. The 

processing fee of the SMA production lines 

charged by the CEC Group shall be determined 

according to a pre-agreed unit price which is 

determined with reference to market rates. 

The price offered to Sang Fei will be no less 

favorable than those offered by other third party 

service providers to Sang Fei.

The Company estimated that for the three 

financial years ending 31 December 2007, 

2008 and 2009, the amount of consideration 

receivable by Sang Fei from the CEC Group 

for the sales of products, samples and raw 

materials and the amount of consideration 

payable by Sang Fei to the CEC Group for 

the purchase of raw materials, provision 

of the support services and the processing 

arrangements are as follows:

Type of transactions 2007  2008  2009

	 (RMB’000)		 (RMB’000)		 (RMB’000)

Sales of products, samples and raw materials 9,600  11,520  13,820

Purchase of raw materials 20,400  24,480  29,380

After sales and maintenance services 3,600  4,320  5,180

Canteen services 20,000  25,000  25,000

Renovation services 10,000  10,000  10,000

Processing arrangements 20,000  25,000  30,000

Since CEC is the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder holding 74.98% interest in the Company, the transactions contemplated under the 

Business Services Agreement and the Processing Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company. The transactions have been 

approved by the shareholders in the special general meeting held on 26 January 2007.
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The Company is committed to achieving the

best corporate governance practices by

emphasising its accountability, transparency,

independence, responsibility and fairness. The

Company is dedicated to exercise corporate

governance through regular reviews of its

adopted practices with reference to the Code

on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG

Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing

Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

The Company has fully complied with the code

provisions in the CG Code throughout 2006.

The following summarises the corporate

governance practices adopted by the Company.

Board of Directors

The board of directors of the Company

(“Board”) consists of two executive directors,

two non-executive directors and three

independent non-executive directors. The

Chairman of the Board is a non-executive

director, who is responsible for the leadership

and overseeing the functioning of the Board

and the strategic development of the Group.

The Managing Director is delegated with the

authority and responsible for managing the

Group’s business, and the implementation of

the Group’s strategies in achieving the overall

commercial objectives. There are no relations

among the directors (including the Chairman

and the Managing Director).

All the directors, including the non-executive

directors, will be subject to retirement by

rotation for every three years and in

accordance with the Listing Rules and the bye-

laws of the Company. The remuneration of the

directors are determined with reference to their

duties, responsibilities and experience, and to

the prevailing market conditions.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of

long term business objectives, strategies and

plans, and to monitor and control the operating

and financial performance of the Group. The

day-to-day operations and implementation of

business objectives are delegated to the

Managing Director. The management is

delegated with power and authority to carry out

daily operations and duties.

The Board has the power and is responsible for

appointing new directors to fill a casual

vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The

nomination will take into consideration the

candidate’s skills knowledge and experience

appropriate for the requirements of the

Company. During the year, the Board has a

meeting with full attendance to appoint Mr.

Chen Zhaoxiong as a non-executive director

and the Chairman of the Company.

All directors actively participate in the review

and monitor of the Company’s business. A list

of directors and their attendance record of the

board meetings in 2006 are set out below:

Number of full board meetings held in 2006: 8

Number of

meetings

Member of the Board attended

Non-executive Director

Chen Zhaoxiong (Chairman) (Note 1) 4

Yang Xiaotang (Note 2) 1

Tong Baoan (Vice Chairman) 6

Executive Director

Fan Qingwu (Managing Director) 8

Hua Longxing 7

Independent Non-executive Director

Chan Kay Cheung 6

Wong Po Yan 6

Yin Yongli 6

Notes:

1. Mr. Chen Zhaoxiong was appointed as non-

executive director of the Company on 11 April

2006.

2. Mr. Yang Xiaotang resigned as non-executive

director of the Company on 11 April 2006.

The biographies of the directors are set out on

pages 10 to 11 of the annual report.

Compliance with the Model

Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors of Listed Issuers

(“Model Code”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code as

set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to

regulate the directors’ securities transactions.

All directors have confirmed, following specific

enquiry by the Company, that they have fully

complied with the Model Code throughout

2006.

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a remuneration

committee, comprising the three independent

non-executive directors and an executive

director. A list of members of the remuneration

committee is set out below. The terms of

reference of the remuneration committee are

available for inspection upon request at the

principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

The principal responsibilities of the

remuneration committee include reviewing and

recommending to the Board the remuneration

policy and the remuneration of the directors

and the senior management.
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The remuneration committee held two

meetings in 2006 to review the remuneration

package of the directors and the policy over

grant of share option to employees. The

attendance of individual members at the

remuneration committee meetings is set out

below:

Number of

Member of the meetings

Remuneration Committee attended

Wong Po Yan (Chairman) 2

Chan Kay Cheung 2

Yin Yongli 2

Fan Qingwu 2

Details of the remuneration of the directors for

the year ended 31 December 2006 and the

share options granted to the directors are set

out on page 50 of the annual report

respectively.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit

committee comprising three independent non-

executive directors of the Company. The

members have extensive experience in

financial matters and one of them is a certified

public accountant. A list of members of the

audit committee is set out below. The terms of

reference of the audit committee are available

for inspection upon request at the principal

office of the Company in Hong Kong.

The audit committee provides independent

review and supervision of financial reporting,

and examines the effectiveness of the internal

controls of the Group and the adequacy of the

external audits. The audit committee examines

all matters relating to the accounting principles

and practices adopted by the Group, including

consideration of the auditing functions, internal

controls, information systems, and financial

reporting matters. External auditors and the

directors are invited to attend the meetings as

and when necessary. The audit committee also

serve as a channel of communication between

the Board and the external auditors.

The audit committee held two meetings in

2006 to review the annual and interim financial

statements and the effectiveness of the internal

control practices of the Group. The audit

committee has also reviewed the audit plan

and approach of the external auditors and

monitors regularly the progress and results of

the audit. The attendance of individual

members at the audit committee meeting is set

out below:

Number of

Member of the meetings

Audit Committee attended

Chan Kay Cheung (Chairman) 2

Wong Po Yan 2

Yin Yongli* 2

* certified public accountant

During 2006, the Group paid to the auditors

HK$1,280,000 for audit services.

Accountability and audit

The Board is responsible for overseeing the

preparation of financial statements which give

a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

Group and of the results and cash flow during

the reporting period. A statement from the

auditors about their reporting responsibilities is

set out on page 19 of the annual report. In

preparing the financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2006, the directors have

selected suitable accounting policies and

applied them consistently and have made

prudent and reasonable judgements and

estimates and have prepared the financial

statements on a going concern basis. The

Board has also reviewed the effectiveness of

the internal control system of the Group,

including all the material controls in financial,

operational, compliance and risk management

functions, through the assistance of the

external auditors to ensure a sound system is

maintained and operated by the management

in compliance with agreed processes and

standards.

On behalf of the Board

Yam Pui Hung, Robert
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 23 March 2007
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Zhaoxiong, aged 45, is the

Chairman of the Company. Mr. Chen is also the

vice chairman and president of China

Electronics Corporation (“CEC”), the controlling

shareholder of the Company, chairman of

China Great Wall Computer Group Company,

chairman of Great Wall Technology Company

Limited, chairman of China Greatwall Computer

Shenzhen Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Kaifa

Technology Co., Ltd. Mr. Chen holds a

doctorate degree, and is also a research

analyst and a mentor to postgraduate doctoral

students. Mr. Chen has been presented with a

number of awards and titles of honor including

the first prize of the National Science and

Technology Advancement Award, the first prize

of Science and Technology Advancement

Award by the Chinese Academy of Sciences,

China Outstanding Young Scientist, National

Ten Outstanding Invention Entrepreneurs and

China’s Top 10 Outstanding Youth. Mr. Chen

has been elected three times continuously as

the vice chairman of All China Youth

Federation, the chairman of China committee

of The International Federation of Information

Processing and is a member of the Advisory

Committee for State Informatisation, and is the

professor of various top colleges including

Tsinghua University and University of Science

and Technology of China. Mr. Chen joined the

Company in April 2006.

Mr. Tong Baoan, aged 59, is the Vice

Chairman of the Company and a director of

CEC. Mr. Tong graduated from Tianjin

University, the PRC, and was the deputy

director of the Department of International

Cooperation of the Ministry of Electronics

Industry. During 1996 to 2001, Mr. Tong was

the general manager of Shenzhen Sang Da

Electronics Corporation, and was the vice

president of CEC from 2001 to 2005. Mr. Tong

joined the Company in September 2004.

Executive Directors

Mr. Fan Qingwu, aged 43, is the Managing

Director of the Company. He is also a director

of Shenzhen Sang Fei Consumer

Communications Company Limited (“Sang

Fei”). Mr. Fan graduated from the Renmin

University of China in the PRC. From 1996 to

1999, Mr. Fan was the executive vice president

of China Securities Industry Institute. From

1999 to 2003, he was the general manager of

the Investment Banking Department and the

Asset Management Department of CEC. Mr.

Fan was also the vice president of China

Electronics Industry Corporation and the chief

economist of CEC. Mr. Fan joined the Company

in September 2004.

Mr. Hua Longxing, aged 65, is an Executive

Director of the Company and is also the

chairman of the board of directors of Sang Fei.

Mr. Hua graduated from the Faculty of Wireless

Engineering of Southeast University in the PRC.

From 1993 to 2000, Mr. Hua was the vice

chairman of the board of directors and the

general manager of Shenzhen SED Industry

Company Limited. Before that, he was the

deputy general manager of Shenzhen Sang Da

Electronics Corporation. From 1983 to 1987,

he was the director of the Liaison Division of

the office of Ministry of Electronics Industry in

Shenzhen Economic Zone. Mr. Hua joined the

Company in September 2004.

Independent Non-executive

Directors

Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, aged 60, is an

executive director and deputy chief executive of

The Bank of East Asia, Limited. He joined the

bank in 1965 and possesses extensive

knowledge and experience in the banking

industry. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the

Hong Kong institute of Bankers, advisory

committee member on the Admission Scheme

for Mainland Talents and Professionals of the

Hong Kong Immigration Department, China

trade advisory committee member of Hong

Kong Trade Development Council and

international senior economic consultant of The

People’s Government of Shaanxi Province. He

is also an independent non-executive director

of Chu Kong Shipping Development Company

Limited and Four Seas Food Holdings Limited.

Mr. Chan was appointed director of the

Company in May 1997.

Mr. Wong Po Yan, aged 83, is the chairman

and managing director of United Overseas

Enterprises Limited and the chairman of the

board of Asia Television Limited. Mr. Wong was

the vice chairman of the Basic Law Committee

of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

under the standing committee the PRC,

member of the Drafting Committee of Basic

Law and member of the Preparatory

Committee of Hong Kong Special

Administrative Region and was the chairman of

the Airport Authority Hong Kong. He had been a

member of the Legislative Council for 9 years.

Mr. Wong was appointed director of the

Company in May 1997.
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Independent Non-executive

Directors (continued)

Mr. Yin Yongli, aged 67, graduated from

Shandong Finance Institute, the PRC. Mr. Yin is

the chairman of China Rightson Certified Public

Accountants/Tianhua Certified Public

Accountants since September 2001. He was

the chairman of another audit firm in the PRC

for the period from 1998 to 2001. Before that,

he spent over 35 years in the petrochemical

industry in the PRC as an accountant of

Sinopec Corporation. From 1985 to 1988, he

became the chief accountant of the financial

planning department. From 1988 to 1998, he

was the deputy department head of the finance

department. Mr. Yin was appointed director of

the Company in September 2004.

Senior Management

Mr. Liu Hongzhou, aged 44, is the Deputy

General Manager of the Company. Mr. Liu

graduated from the Faculty of Wireless

Engineering of Hangzhou Dianzi University and

holds a research master degree in business

administration. Mr. Liu was the deputy general

manager of the Asset Management

Department of CEC. He has over 20 years

experience in the electronics industry and

possesses extensive knowledge in corporate

asset management and business development.

Mr. Liu joined the Company in November 2006.

Mr. Yam Pui Hung Robert, aged 39, is the

Qualified Accountant and Company Secretary

of the Company. Mr. Yam is a certified public

accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants and a fellow

member of the Association of Chartered

Certified Accountants. Mr. Yam holds a

bachelor’s degree in accountancy and has

extensive experience in accounting, financial

management and corporate finance. Mr. Yam

joined the Company in September 2004.
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The directors submit their report together with

the audited financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2006.

Principal activities and

geographical analysis of

operations

The Company is an investment holding

company. The principal activities of the

Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the

“Group”) comprise the manufacturing and

sales of portable electronics products. The

principal activities of the principal subsidiaries

are set out in Note 8 to the financial

statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the

year by business and geographical segments is

set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set

out in the consolidated income statement on

page 23 of the annual report.

The directors recommended the payment of a

final dividend of HK$0.016 per share to

shareholders whose name appear on the

register of member on 27 April 2007.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and

equipment of the Group and of the Company

are set out in Note 6 to the financial

statements.

Share capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are

set out in Note 12 to the financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of

the Company during the year are set out in

Note 13 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31

December 2006 as calculated under the laws

in Bermuda and the Company’s bye-laws

amounted to HK$130,590,000 (2005:

HK$96,374,000).

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and

liabilities of the Group for the last five financial

years is set out on page 60 of the annual

report.

Short-term loans

Particular of the short-term loans of the Group

are set out in Note 15 to the financial

statements.

Borrowing costs

No interest was capitalised by the Group during

the year (2005: nil).

Directors

The directors during the year were:

Non-executive Directors

Chen Zhaoxiong (Chairman)

(appointed on 11 April 2006)

Yang Xiaotang

(resigned on 11 April 2006)

Tong Baoan (Vice Chairman)

Executive Directors

Fan Qingwu (Managing Director)

Hua Longxing

Independent Non-executive Directors

Chan Kay Cheung

Wong Po Yan

Yin Yongli

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the

Company’s bye-laws, Messrs. Tong Baoan and

Fan Qingwu will retire by rotation at the

forthcoming annual general meeting and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received confirmation from

each of the independent non-executive

directors as regards their independence to the

Company, and considers them to be

independent.

None of the directors proposed for re-election

at the forthcoming annual general meeting has

a service contract which is not determinable by

the Company within one year without payment

of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

Biographical details of directors

Brief biographies of the directors of the

Company are set out on pages 10 to 11 of the

annual report.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and

debentures

As at 31 December 2006, the interests and short positions of the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as

recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were

as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company

Approximate

Interest in underlying percentage of the

shares pursuant issued share capital

Name of director Capacity to share options Total interest of the Company

Tong Baoan Beneficial owner 3,800,000 3,800,000 0.35%

Fan Qingwu Beneficial owner 3,600,000 3,600,000 0.33%

Hua Longxing Beneficial owner 3,600,000 3,600,000 0.33%

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December

2006, none of the directors nor the chief

executive of the Company and their respective

associates had any interests or short positions

in the shares, underlying shares or debentures

of the Company or any of its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of

the SFO), which were recorded in the register

maintained by the Company pursuant to

Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

Share option scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on

20 June 2002, the Company adopted a new

share option scheme (the “Share Option

Scheme”) to replace the old share option

scheme. According to the Share Option

Scheme, the board of directors of the Company

may grant options to any executive and non-

executive directors of the Company, full time

employees and part-time employees of the

Group, advisors, consultants, distributors,

suppliers, agents, customers, partners, joint

venture partners, promoters, service providers

to the Group. The purpose is to provide the

participants with the opportunity to acquire

proprietary interests in the Company and to

encourage participants to work towards

enhancing the value of the Company.

The total number of shares which may be

issued upon exercise of all options granted and

to be granted under the Share Option Scheme

must not exceed 108,356,000 ordinary shares,

representing 10% of the issued share capital

as at the date of the annual report. The number

of shares which might be issued upon exercise

of all outstanding options granted and yet to be

exercised under the Share Option Scheme and

any other share option schemes adopted by the

Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30%

of the issued share capital of the Company

from time to time. The maximum entitlement of

each participant in any 12 month period must

not exceed 1% of the shares in issue from time

to time. No share options were outstanding

under the old option scheme.

There was no requirement for a grantee to hold

the option for a certain period before exercising

the option unless otherwise determined by the

directors. The exercise period should be any

period determined by the board of directors but

in any event the exercise period should not

later than 10 years from the date of grant. The

grantee must accept an option within 21 days

from the date of offer by making a non-

refundable payment of HK$1 to the Company.

The subscription price shall be at the discretion

of the board of directors provided that it shall

be not less than the highest of (i) the closing

price of the shares on the date of grant; (ii) the

average of the closing prices of the shares for

the five business days immediately preceding

the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of

a share on the date of grant. The Share Option

Scheme will remain in force until 19 June

2012.

During the year, no share options were granted

under the Share Option Scheme.
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As at 31 December 2006, the directors and the chief executive of the Company and employees of the Group had the following personal interests in

options to subscribe for shares of the Company granted under the Share Option Scheme:

Options Options

outstanding as at outstanding as at

Name 1/1/2006 Options lapsed 31/12/2006

Directors

Yang Xiaotang* 4,000,000 (4,000,000) –

Tong Baoan 3,800,000 – 3,800,000

Fan Qingwu 3,600,000 – 3,600,000

Hua Longxing 3,600,000 – 3,600,000

Sub-total 15,000,000 (4,000,000) 11,000,000

Aggregate of employees and other participants 13,450,000 (3,300,000) 10,150,000

28,450,000 (7,300,000) 21,150,000

* Mr. Yang resigned as non-executive director and chairman of the Company on 11 April 2006. The option granted to Mr. Yang has lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option

Scheme as a result of his resignation.

The outstanding options were all granted on 25

October 2005 under the Share Option Scheme.

The options represent personal interest held by

the grantees as beneficial owners. Grantees of

such options are entitled to exercise the

options at a price of HK$1.488 per share in the

following periods:

(i) in respect of 40% of the options granted,

from 1 November 2005 to 31 October

2008;

(ii) in respect of a further 30% of the

options granted, from 1 November 2006

to 31 October 2009; and

(iii) in respect of the remaining 30% of the

options granted, from 1 November 2007

to 31 October 2010.

No options granted under the Share Option

Scheme were exercised or cancelled during the

year.

Directors’ rights to acquire

shares or debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the

year was the Company, its holding company or

any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a

party to any arrangements to enable the

directors of the Company or their respective

associates (as defined under the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

“Listing Rules”)) to acquire benefits by means

of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures

of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contracts of significance to which the

Company, its holding company or any of its

subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party

and in which a director of the Company had a

material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.



CHINA ELECTRONICS
CORPORATION HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED15

2006 ANNUAL REPORTReport of the Directors

Connected transactions

Details of the connected transactions entered into by the Group during the year are set out below:

Continuing connected transactions

Type of transaction Amount
Note HK$’000

Sales of products, samples and materials and provision of i 2,894,515

after sales service to the Philips Group

Provision of maintenance services to the Philips Group ii 25,338

Purchases of goods from the Philips Group iii 219,418

Sales of products, samples and materials to the CEC Group iv 4,428

Purchases of goods from the CEC Group v 21,533

After sales repair and maintenance services by the CEC Group vi 2,772

Provision of canteen services by the CEC Group vii 10,918

Fitment and decoration services from the CEC Group viii 1,820

Rental arrangements with the CEC Group ix 8,621

Processing arrangements with the CEC Group x 11,543

Notes:

(i) Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V., together with its

group companies (the “Philips Group”), is a

connected person of the Company by virtue of being

a substantial shareholder of Shenzhen Sang Fei

Consumer Communications Company Limited (“Sang

Fei”), the principal operating subsidiary of the

Company.

Members of the Philips Group are the major

customers of the Group. Sales to the Philips Group

were based on the general purchasing agreement

dated 13 July 2005 (“General Purchasing

Agreement”), pursuant to which the Philips Group

was entitled to purchase goods from the Group at a

price determined using a “cost plus” basis and with

reference to market rates. Sales to the Philips Group

were approved by the written approval from China

Electronics Corporation (“CEC”), details of which

were included in the circular dated 11 August 2005.

(ii) Members of the Philips Group engaged the Group for

the provision of maintenance services during the

product warranty period. The maintenance services

were provided under the maintenance services

agreement dated 21 January 2006 (“Maintenance

Services Agreement”) and were carried out on

normal commercial terms and conditions with

reference to market rates. The provision of

maintenance services to the Philips Group were

approved by the written approval from CEC, details

of which were included in the circular dated 16

February 2006.

(iii) Members of the Philips Group are the major

suppliers of raw materials. Purchases of raw

materials from the Philips Group were based on the

General Purchasing Agreement and on normal

commercial terms and conditions and with reference

to market rates. Purchases of raw materials from the

Philips Group were approved by the written approval

from CEC, details of which were included in the

circular dated 11 August 2005.

(iv) CEC together with its subsidiaries (the “CEC Group”),

is a connected person of the Company by virtue of

being the controlling shareholder of the Company.

The connected transactions with the CEC Group

disclosed in this section were approved by the

shareholders at a special general meeting on 14 July

2004, details of which were included in the circular

dated 21 June 2004.

Members of the CEC Group are major customers of

the Group. Sales to the CEC Group were based on

the business services agreement dated 17 June

2004 (“Business Services Agreement”) and were

carried out on normal commercial terms and

conditions and with reference to market rates.

(v) The Group from time to time purchases raw

materials from members of the CEC Group.

Purchases of raw materials from the CEC Group

were based on the Business Services Agreement

and the Plastic Supply Agreement (detailed of which

were included in the circular dated 31 March 2006)

and were carried out on normal commercial terms

and conditions and with reference to market rates.

(vi) The Group engaged Shenzhen SED ARC Co., Ltd.

and Shanghai SED ARC Co., Ltd. (members of the

CEC Group) to provide after sales product repair and

maintenance services in respect of its products. The

repair and maintenance services were based on the

Business Services Agreement and were carried out

on normal commercial terms and conditions with

reference to market rates.

(vii) Shenzhen Sang Da Baili Electronics Co., Ltd. (a

member of the CEC Group) provides canteen

services to the production staff of the Group. The

canteen services were based on the Business
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Services Agreement and the service fees were

calculated by reference to actual consumption and

an agreed fixed premium. Such service fees were on

normal commercial terms and conditions and were

determined with reference to market rates. The

Company has subsequently revised the cap in

relation to the provision of canteen services. Details

of which were included in the announcement of the

Company dated 6 January 2006.

(viii) The Group engaged members of the CEC Group to

undertake renovation works in connection with the

expansion and improvement of the Group’s

production premises. The fitment and decoration

services were based on the Business Services

Agreement and were on normal commercial terms

and conditions with reference to market rates.

(ix) The production facilities and some of the staff

quarters of the Group were located within an

industrial complex owned by members of the CEC

Group. These rentals arrangements were based on

lease agreements entered into between the relevant

members of the CEC Group and the Group and were

calculated on normal commercial terms and

conditions with reference to market rates. The

Company further leased a warehouse from members

of the CEC Group, details of which were included in

the announcement of the Company dated 15

September 2006.

(x) The Group secured dedicated processing services of

surface mount assembly production lines from

members of the CEC Group. The processing services

were based on the Processing Agreements entered

into between the relevant members of the CEC

Group and the Group and were carried out on normal

commercial terms and conditions with reference to

market rates.

In the opinion of the independent non-

executive directors of the Company, the above

transactions were carried out in the ordinary

and usual course of business of the Group, on

normal commercial terms and were in

accordance with the relevant agreements

governing them and on terms that were fair

and reasonable and in the interests of the

Group and the shareholders of the Company as

a whole.

The auditors have confirmed that the above

transactions:

• had been approved by the board of

directors of the Company;

• were in accordance with the pricing

policies of the Group;

• were entered into in accordance with the

terms of the relevant agreements

governing such transactions; and

• had not exceeded their respective caps

as describe in previous announcements

and approved by the Stock Exchange.

Directors’ interests in competing business

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following directors of the Company are considered to have interests in businesses which compete

or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group:

Principal business Nature of director’s

Name of director Name of entity of the entity interest in the entity

Chen Zhaoxiong China Electronics Corporation (Note a) Investment holdings Vice chairman and president

Tong Baoan China Electronics Corporation (Note a) Investment holdings Director

China Electronics Industry Corporation (Note b) Investment holdings President and legal representative

Shenzhen SED Industry Co., Ltd. (Note b) Investment holdings Chairman

Fan Qingwu China Electronics Industry Corporation (Note b) Investment holdings Vice president

Notes:

(a) China Electronics Corporation (“CEC”) is the controlling shareholder of the Company. CEC is a state-owned nationwide electronics and information technology conglomerate, and has

subsidiaries and associates engaged in mobile handset related businesses which compete or are likely to compete with the business of the Group. Mr. Chen Zhaoxiong was appointed the

vice chairman and president of CEC in October 2005.

(b) China Electronics Industry Corporation and Shenzhen SED Industry Co., Ltd. have subsidiaries or associates engaged in mobile handset related businesses which compete or are likely to

compete with the business of the Group. China Electronics Industry Corporation has ceased to be a subsidiary of CEC as at the date of this report. Shenzhen SED Industry Co., Ltd. is a

company whose A shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and is indirectly owned as to approximately 46.05% by CEC as at the date of this report.
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The abovementioned competing businesses

are operated and managed by independent

management and administration. In addition,

the directors of the Company consider that the

business model of and markets served by the

Group are different from those companies. The

board of the Company can exercise

independent judgement and is always acting

for the interests of the Company and its

shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the

Group is capable of carrying on its businesses

independently of, and at arm’s length from, the

competing businesses mentioned above.

Substantial shareholders

As at 31 December 2006, the register of

substantial shareholders maintained by the

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO

showed that the following shareholders had

notified the Company of their relevant interests

in the issued capital of the Company.

Name of shareholder Number of shares held Percentage of shareholding

China Electronics Corporation (BVI) Holdings 812,500,000 74.98%

Company Limited (“CEC BVI”)

CEC (Note 1) 812,500,000 74.98%

Devon Fortune Limited (“Devon Fortune”) 91,421,608 8.43%

Chan Chak Shing (Note 2) 95,546,608 8.81%

Notes:

(1) CEC holds 100% interest in CEC BVI and is deemed to be interested in the shares held by CEC BVI. The directors regard CEC, a state-owned enterprise established under the laws of the

People’s Republic of China, as being the ultimate holding company of the Group.

(2) This number of shares represents the aggregate of (i) Mr. Chan Chak Shing’s family interest of 4,125,000 shares and (ii) corporate interest of 91,421,608 shares held by Devon Fortune.

As Mr. Chan Chak Shing holds 100% interest in Devon Fortune, the interests of Devon Fortune are deemed to be the interests of Mr. Chan Chak Shing.

All the interests disclosed above represent long

position in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December

2006, no person or corporation had any

interest or short position in the shares or

underlying shares of the Company as recorded

in the register required to be kept under

Section 336 of the SFO.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights

under the Company’s bye-laws or the laws in

Bermuda.

Purchase, sale or redemption of

securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its

shares during the year. Neither the Company

nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or

sold any of the Company’s shares during the

year.

Major suppliers and customers

During the year, the percentages of sales for

the year attributable to the Group’s major

customers are as follows:

Sales

– the largest customer 46%

– five largest customers combined 90%

The percentages of purchases for the year

attributable to the Group’s major suppliers are

as follows:

Purchases

– the largest supplier 9%

– five largest suppliers combined 30%

Philips Group is the beneficial owner of three of

the five largest customers of the Group. Details

of the transactions are set out in the section

headed “Connected Transactions” above.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors,

their respective associates or any shareholder

(which to the knowledge of the directors owns

more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)

had an interest in the major customers or

suppliers noted above.
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Public float

Based on the information that is publicly

available to the Company and within the

knowledge of the directors of the Company, as

at the date of this report, the Company has

maintained the prescribed public float under

the Listing Rules.

Audit committee

The audit committee comprises Messrs. Chan

Kay Cheung, Wong Po Yan and Yin Yongli, who

are independent non-executive directors. The

audit committee examined the accounting

principles and practices adopted by the Group

and discussed with management its internal

controls and financial statements. During the

year, the audit committee has reviewed the

unaudited interim financial statements for the

six months ended 30 June 2006 and the

audited financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2006.

Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being

eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Zhaoxiong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2007
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PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile (852) 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

Introduction

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries

(collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 21 to 59 which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2006, and the

consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and

a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in

accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to

the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;

selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a

body, in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose, we do not assume responsibility forwards or

accept liability to any person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those

standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures

selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation

of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31

December 2006 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2007
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As at 31 December
Note 2006 2005

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 61,685 79,051
Intangible assets 7 16,251 14,113
Deferred income tax assets 22(b) 8,916 4,514

86,852 97,678

Current assets
Inventories 9 335,802 447,034
Trade and other receivables 10 493,179 1,084,944
Cash and cash equivalents 11 419,809 306,381

1,248,790 1,838,359

Total assets 1,335,642 1,936,037

EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s equity holders
Issued equity 12 370,074 370,074
Other reserves 13 55,137 35,062
Retained earnings

– Proposed final dividend 17,337 21,671
– Unappropriated retained earnings 21,815 3,209

464,363 430,016

Minority interests 138,775 138,379

Total equity 603,138 568,395

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 717,826 1,129,194
Current income tax liabilities 2,044 5,573
Short term bank loans 15 – 230,769
Provision for warranty 16 12,634 2,106

Total liabilities 732,504 1,367,642

Total equity and liabilities 1,335,642 1,936,037

Net current assets 516,286 470,717

Total assets less current liabilities 603,138 568,395

The notes on pages 26 to 59 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chen Zhaoxiong Fan Qingwu
Director Director
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As at 31 December

Note 2006 2005

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 6 900 605

Investments in subsidiaries 8 271,700 263,900

272,600 264,505

Current assets

Other receivables 10 469 2,133

Cash and cash equivalents 11 196,156 169,574

196,625 171,707

Total assets 469,225 436,212

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s equity holders

Share capital 12 335,891 335,891

Other reserves 13 71,898 68,244

Retained earnings

– Proposed final dividend 17,337 21,671

– Unappropriated retained earnings 41,355 6,459

Total equity 466,481 432,265

Current liabilities

Other payables 14 2,744 3,947

Total equity and liabilities 469,225 436,212

Net current assets 193,881 167,760

Total assets less current liabilities 466,481 432,265

The notes on pages 26 to 59 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chen Zhaoxiong Fan Qingwu
Director Director
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Year ended 31 December

Note 2006 2005

Sales 5 3,549,329 4,768,526

Cost of goods sold 18 (3,317,032) (4,537,491)

Gross profit 232,297 231,035

Other gains – net 17 5,130 13,822

Selling and marketing costs 18 (42,457) (41,706)

Administrative expenses 18 (125,118) (106,401)

Operating profit 69,852 96,750

Finance income/(costs) – net 21 1,665 (6,804)

Profit before income tax 71,517 89,946

Income tax expense 22 (2,358) (5,598)

Profit for the year 69,159 84,348

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 23 43,276 49,899

Minority interests 25,883 34,449

69,159 84,348

Earnings per share for profit attributable to the

equity holders of the Company during the year

(expressed in HK cents per share)

– basic 24 3.99 4.61

– diluted 24 3.99 4.61

Dividends 25 17,337 21,671

The notes on pages 26 to 59 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Attributable to equity holders Minority

of the Company interests Total equity

(Accumulated

losses)/

Issued Other retained

equity reserves earnings Total

Note (Note 12) (Note 13)

Balance at 1 January 2005 373,750 19,204 (23,713) 369,241 124,884 494,125

Utilisation of issued equity against

accumulated losses (3,676) – 3,676 – – –

Dividends paid by a subsidiary

related to 2004 – – – – (23,282) (23,282)

Share option granted 13 – 6,572 – 6,572 – 6,572

Appropriation to other reserves – 4,982 (4,982) – – –

Currency translation differences – 4,304 – 4,304 2,328 6,632

Profit for the year – – 49,899 49,899 34,449 84,348

Balance at 31 December 2005 370,074 35,062 24,880 430,016 138,379 568,395

Balance at 1 January 2006 370,074 35,062 24,880 430,016 138,379 568,395

Dividends related to 2005 – – (21,671) (21,671) (25,449) (47,120)

Share option granted 13 – 3,654 – 3,654 – 3,654

Appropriation to other reserves – 7,333 (7,333) – – –

Currency translation differences – 9,088 – 9,088 (38) 9,050

Profit for the year – – 43,276 43,276 25,883 69,159

Balance at 31 December 2006 370,074 55,137 39,152 464,363 138,775 603,138

The notes on pages 26 to 59 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December

Note 2006 2005

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 26 432,159 314,835

Interest paid (6,444) (11,501)

Income tax paid (10,289) (8,076)

Net cash generated from operating activities 415,426 295,258

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 8,109 4,697

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (32,260) (26,935)

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 42 672

Net cash used in investing activities (24,109) (21,566)

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid to Company’s equity holders (21,671) –

Dividends paid to minority interests (25,449) (23,282)

Proceeds from bank loans 1,194,175 1,363,248

Repayment of bank loans borrowed (1,424,944) (1,524,710)

Net cash used in financing activities (277,889) (184,744)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 113,428 88,948

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 306,381 217,433

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 419,809 306,381

The notes on pages 26 to 59 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1. General information

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with

limited liability. The Company has its shares listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) comprise the manufacturing and sales of portable electronics products.

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollar (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These

consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2007.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been

consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a) Preparation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared

under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also

requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a

higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are

disclosed in Note 4.

(b) The adoption of new/revised HKFRS

The following standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1

January 2006 but are not relevant to the Group’s operations:

HKAS 19 Amendment Employee Benefits –  Acturial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures;

HKAS 21 Amendment Net Investment in a Foreign Operation;

HKAS 39 Amendment Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions;

HKAS 39 Amendment The Fair Value Option;

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4 Amendments Financial Guarantee Contracts;

HKFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources;

HKFRS 1 and HKFRS 6 Amendments First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Exploration for and

Evaluation of Mineral Resources;

HK(IFRIC) – Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease;

HK(IFRIC) – Int 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental

Rehabilitation Funds; and

HK(IFRIC) – Int 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market – Waste Electrical and Electronic

Equipment.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (continued)

The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have been issued but are not effective for 2006 and have

not been early adopted:

– HK(IFRIC) – Int 7, ‘Applying the Restatement Approach under HKFRS 29, Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies’, effective for

annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006.

Management do not expect the interpretation to be relevant for the Group.

– HK(IFRIC) – Int 8, ‘Scope of HKFRS 2’, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006;

– HKFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007;

– HKAS 1 Amendment – ‘Capital Disclosures’, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007; and

– HK(IFRIC) – Int 10, ‘Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment’, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 November 2006.

Management is currently assessing the impact of HK(IFRIC) – Int 8, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1 Amendment and HK(IFRIC) – Int 10 on the Group’s

financial statements.

– HK(IFRIC) – Int 9, ‘Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives’, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006.

Management do not expect the interpretation to be relevant for the Group.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating

policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting

rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date

that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is

measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,

plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a

business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as

goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised

directly in the income statement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised

losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of

subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of

subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

(b) Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority interests as transactions with parities external to the Group. Disposals

to minority interests result in gains and losses for the Group that are recorded in the consolidated income statement. Purchases from

minority interests result in goodwill, being the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying

value of net assets of the subsidiary.

2.3 Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that

are different from those of other business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular

economic environment that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars, which is different from the Group’s functional currency of Renminbi. The Directors consider that presentation of consolidated

financial statements in Hong Kong dollars will facilitate analysis of financial information of the Group.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the

transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end

exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a

functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

– assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

– income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable

approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are

translated at the dates of the transactions); and

– all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings are taken to

shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, such exchange differences that were recorded in equity are

recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that

is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow

hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that

future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and

maintenance are expensed in the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values over their

estimated useful lives, as follows:

– Leasehold improvements 5 years (or over the lease term, whichever is shorter)

– Plant and machinery 3-4 years

– Motor vehicles 5 years

– Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s carrying amount

is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income

statement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.6 Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the

acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is tested

annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains

and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating

units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose.

If the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition exceeds the cost

of acquisition, the excess should be recognised immediately in the income statement.

(b) Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.

These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (three to five years).

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs that

are directly associated with the development of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Group, and that will probably

generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets. Direct costs include the employee

costs incurred as a result of developing software and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives.

(c) Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects relating to the design and testing of new or improved

products are recognised as an intangible asset where the technical feasibility and intention of completing the product under development

has been demonstrated and the resources are available to do so, costs are identifiable and there is an ability to sell or use the asset that

will generate probable future economic benefits. Such development costs are recognised as an asset and amortised on a straight-line

basis over a period of not more than 5 years to reflect the pattern in which the related economic benefits are recognised. Development

costs that do not meet the above criteria are expensed as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not

recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7 Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying

amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable

amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing

impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets other

than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity

investments, and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management

determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if

acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are

designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.

They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as

non-current assets. Loans and receivables are classified as trade and other receivables in the balance sheet (Note 2.10).

(c) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the

Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. During the year, the Group did not hold any investments

in this category.

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other

categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the

balance sheet date. During the year, the Group did not hold any investments in this category.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date – the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the

asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or

loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the

income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been

transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial

assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are

carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are included in the

income statement in the period in which they arise.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is

impaired.

2.9 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. The cost of finished

goods and work in progress comprises design costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based

on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there is objective

evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. Significant financial

difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments

are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying

amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is

reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement within administrative

expenses. When the receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited against administrative expenses in the income statement.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original

maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.13 Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any

difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the balance sheet date.

2.15 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)

that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax

asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of the

temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.16 Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for

future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the

class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same

class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects

current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage

of time is recognised as interest expense.

The Group recognises a provision for repair or replacement of products still under warranty at the balance sheet date. This provision is

calendared based on past history of the level of repairs and replacements.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF”) for the eligible employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to

MPF are set at 5% of employees’ salaries, including basic salaries and other cash allowances and are expensed as incurred.

The principal subsidiary, Shenzhen Sang Fei Consumer Communications Co., Ltd. (“Sang Fei”), that operates in the PRC has to make

contribution to staff retirement scheme managed by local government authorities in accordance with the relevant rules and regulations.

Contributions to these schemes are charged to the income statement as and when incurred.

(b) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for

annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(c) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a

result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to be settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts expected to

be paid when they are settled.

(d) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for

the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by

reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions. Non-market vesting

conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest. At each balance sheet date, the entity

revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if

any, in the income statement, and a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium

when the options are exercised.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.18 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existent will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from

past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation

cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the accounts. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so

that outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as a provision.

2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods, net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and

discounts. Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered to customers, the customers has accepted the goods and collectibility of the

related receivables is reasonably assured.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group

reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at original effective interest rate of

the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

2.20 Operating leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line

basis over the period of the lease.

2.21 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the

dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

3. Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow and fair value

interest rate risk.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risks of the Group occur due to the fact that the Group has business activities denominated in foreign currencies,

primarily with respect to the US dollars, Hong Kong dollars, Euro and Japanese Yen. The Group has entered into foreign exchange

forward contracts to manage the risk arising from its operations. Nevertheless, the conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies is

subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) government.
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3. Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group performs

ongoing credit evaluations for its customers’ financial condition and generally does not require collateral on trade receivables. The

Group maintains a provision for doubtful debts and actual losses have been within management’s expectation.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of

committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group maintains flexibility in funding by keeping

availability of committed credit lines.

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group does not have significant interest-bearing assets, the Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent

of changes in market interest rates.

3.2 Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The fair

values of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest

rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests annually whether non-financial assets, mainly including property, plant and equipment and intangible assets has suffered any

impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.7. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been

determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates.

(b) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide provision for

income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course

of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will

impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
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4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

(c) Share option

The Group operates a share option scheme. The fair value of the options granted during the year (Note 13 (c)) is determined by using valuation

techniques. The Group uses its judgements to select the valuation method and make assumptions for the significant inputs into the valuation

model. At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews its estimates of the number of options that are expected to become exercisable. It

recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the income statement, and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the

remaining vesting period.

5. Segment information

Primary reporting format – business segments

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of portable electronics products.

Own branded
Philips branded and other

original equipment original design OEM of other
manufacturer manufacturer products and

(“OEM”) products (“ODM”) products other operation Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Turnover 2,073,120 3,349,265 1,366,825 1,063,387 109,384 355,874 3,549,329 4,768,526

Segment results 68,392 118,412 157,371 68,463 6,534 44,160 232,297 231,035

Other gains-net 5,130 13,822

Unallocated costs (167,575) (148,107 )

Operating profit 69,852 96,750

Finance income/(costs)

– net 1,665 (6,804 )

Profit before income tax 71,517 89,946

Income tax expense (2,358) (5,598 )

Profit for the year 69,159 84,348

Segment assets 286,174 997,513 196,879 43,428 32,380 9,618 515,433 1,050,559

Unallocated assets 820,209 885,478

Total assets 1,335,642 1,936,037

Segment liabilities 298,751 63,090 276,729 3,718 15,753 – 591,233 66,808

Unallocated liabilities 141,271 1,300,834

Total liabilities 732,504 1,367,642

Capital expenditures 32,260 26,935

Depreciation/

amortisation charge 49,646 57,863

Impairment charge (4,952) 21,024
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5. Segment information (Continued)

Primary reporting format – business segments (Continued)

Unallocated costs consist primarily of selling and marketing costs and administrative expenses, which contribute to all business segments.

Segment assets consist primarily of inventories and trade receivables. Unallocated assets comprise property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,

deferred taxation, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

Segment liabilities comprise trading liabilities. Unallocated liabilities comprise items such as taxation, borrowings, provisions and other payables.

Secondary reporting format – geographical segments

The Group’s three business segments operate in four main geographical areas – Mainland China, Europe, Hong Kong and Asia excluding Mainland

China and Hong Kong. The segment sales based on the geographical location of its customers are presented below:

2006 2005

Sales

Mainland China 1,676,916 2,256,707

Europe 6,540 690,062

Asia excluding Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,030,871 606,578

Hong Kong 835,002 1,215,179

3,549,329 4,768,526

No segment assets and liabilities are presented as over 90% of the Group’s assets are located in Mainland China.
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6. Property, plant and equipment

Group

Leasehold Plant and Motor Furniture

improvements machinery vehicles and fixtures Total

At 1 January 2005

Cost 33,466 276,074 2,887 25,354 337,781

Accumulated depreciation and impairment (21,948) (182,792) (1,566) (12,073) (218,379)

Net book amount 11,518 93,282 1,321 13,281 119,402

Year ended 31 December 2005

Opening net book amount 11,518 93,282 1,321 13,281 119,402

Additions 3,809 6,300 335 3,393 13,837

Depreciation charge (3,481) (42,864) (456) (8,533) (55,334)

Exchange differences 195 1,430 10 179 1,814

Disposals (58) (568) – (42 ) (668)

Closing net book amount 11,983 57,580 1,210 8,278 79,051

At 31 December 2005

Cost 37,834 286,627 3,265 29,068 356,794

Accumulated depreciation and impairment (25,851) (229,047) (2,055) (20,790) (277,743)

Net book amount 11,983 57,580 1,210 8,278 79,051

Year ended 31 December 2006

Opening net book amount 11,983 57,580 1,210 8,278 79,051

Additions 2,853 19,024 1,375 2,982 26,234

Depreciation charge (4,323) (34,792) (592) (5,617) (45,324)

Exchange differences 342 1,259 17 154 1,772

Disposals – (12 ) – (36 ) (48)

Closing net book amount 10,855 43,059 2,010 5,761 61,685

At 31 December 2006

Cost 24,795 307,331 4,743 32,596 369,465

Accumulated depreciation and impairment (13,940) (264,272) (2,733) (26,835) (307,780)

Net book amount 10,855 43,059 2,010 5,761 61,685

Depreciation expense of HK$35,415,000 (2005: HK$43,944,000) has been expensed in cost of goods sold, HK$200,000 (2005: HK$225,000) in

selling and marketing costs and HK$9,709,000 (2005: HK$11,165,000) in administrative expenses.

Lease rental expense amounting to HK$14,860,000 (2005: HK$16,168,000) relating to the lease of property and machinery are included in the

income statement.
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6. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Company

Furniture

Motor vehicles and fixtures Total

At 1 January 2005

Cost 684 52 736

Accumulated depreciation (45) (10) (55)

Net book amount 639 42 681

Year ended 31 December 2005

Opening net book amount 639 42 681

Additions – 72 72

Depreciation charge (137) (11) (148)

Closing net book amount 502 103 605

At 31 December 2005

Cost 684 124 808

Accumulated depreciation (182) (21) (203)

Net book amount 502 103 605

Year ended 31 December 2006

Opening net book amount 502 103 605

Additions 488 57 545

Disposal – (10) (10)

Depreciation charge (211) (29) (240)

Closing net book amount 779 121 900

At 31 December 2006

Cost 1,172 166 1,338

Accumulated depreciation (393) (45) (438)

Net book amount 779 121 900
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7. Intangible assets – Group

Computer Software

At 1 January 2005

Cost 10,609

Accumulated amortisation (7,111)

Net book amount 3,498

Year ended 31 December 2005

Opening net book amount 3,498

Additions 13,098

Exchange differences 46

Amortisation charge (2,529)

Closing net book amount 14,113

At 31 December 2005

Cost 23,918

Accumulated amortisation (9,805)

Net book amount 14,113

Year ended 31 December 2006

Opening net book amount 14,113

Additions 6,026

Exchange differences 434

Amortisation charge (4,322)

Closing net book amount 16,251

At 31 December 2006

Cost 30,900

Accumulated amortisation (14,649)

Net book amount 16,251

Amortisation of HK$634,000 (2005: HK$137,000) has been expensed in cost of goods sold, HK$39,000 (2005: HK$32,000) is included in selling

and marketing costs and HK$3,649,000 (2005: HK$2,360,000) in administrative expenses in the income statement.
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8. Investments in subsidiaries – Company

2006 2005

Investments in subsidiaries – unlisted shares, at cost 260,000 260,000

Amounts due from subsidiaries 11,700 3,900

271,700 263,900

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2006.

Place of

incorporation Place of operation Particulars

and kind of and principal of issued

Name legal entity activities share capital Interest held

Indirectly held:

Sang Fei PRC, a Sino-foreign PRC, manufacture Registered 65%

equity joint venture and sales of portable capital of

company electronics products US$33,000,000

China Electronics Corporation Hong Kong, limited Hong Kong, provision of 2 ordinary shares 100%

Management Limited company group management of HK$1 each

services

9. Inventories – Group

2006 2005

Raw materials 230,856 284,703

Work in progress 54,850 100,139

Finished goods 50,096 62,192

335,802 447,034

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost of goods sold amounted to HK$3,127,030,000 (2005: HK$4,325,554,000).

Reversal of written down of inventories to net realisable value of HK$4,952,000 (2005: provision of HK$21,024,000) has been credited in cost of

goods sold during the year with utilisation of such inventories.
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10. Trade and other receivables

Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

Trade receivables (Note (a)) 415,932 1,010,140 – –

Notes receivables 799 1,981 – –

Other receivables from related parties (Note 29(c)) 24,026 26,583 – –

Prepayments and deposits 21,011 11,868 219 484

Value-added tax refundable 25,739 21,000 – –

Other receivables 5,672 13,372 250 1,649

493,179 1,084,944 469 2,133

The directors are of the opinion that the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their fair values. All trade and other receivables

are due within 1 year and non interest-bearing.

(a) The majority of the Group’s sales are on letter of credit or documents against payment. The remaining amounts are with credit term of 30 to

60 days. At 31 December 2006, the ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables was as follows:

Ageing 2006 2005

Current to 30 days 410,109 968,786

31 – 60 days 2,561 23,480

Over 60 days 3,262 17,874

415,932 1,010,140

Including in the balance were trade receivables from related parties of HK$352,597,000 (2005: HK$920,551,000). About 90% (2005: 91%)

of the trade receivables from related parties as at 31 December 2006 was covered by bank issued guarantee documents.
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11. Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

Cash at bank and in hand

China Electronics Corporation

Finance Co., Ltd. (Note 29(c)) 51,595 2,886 – –

Cash at other banks and financial institutions and

in hand 170,131 235,846 9,151 101,925

221,726 238,732 9,151 101,925

Short-term bank deposits 198,083 67,649 187,005 67,649

419,809 306,381 196,156 169,574

China Electronics Corporation Finance Co., Ltd. is a non-bank financial institution approved by the People’s Bank of China. The deposits yield interest

at prevailing saving deposit rates.

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 2.459% (2005: 3.844%). The maturity days of these deposits ranged from 5 to 29 days

(2005: 15 to 35 days).

12. Issued equity/share capital

(a) Issued equity – Group

Number of shares Issued equity

At 1 January 2005 8,668,480,000 373,750

Capital reorganisation (ii) (7,584,920,000) –

Utilisation of issued equity against accumulated losses (iii) – (3,676)

At 31 December 2005 1,083,560,000 370,074

At 1 January and 31 December 2006 1,083,560,000 370,074

(i) On 10 December 2003, China Electronics Corporation (“CEC”), the Company and the Company’s then holding company, Winsan

International Holdings Limited entered into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire CEC’s 65% equity interest in Sang Fei (the

“Acquisition”). The Acquisition was completed on 24 September 2004 and has been accounted for as a reverse acquisition. For

accounting purpose, Sang Fei is regarded as the acquirer while the Company and its then subsidiaries are deemed to have been

acquired by Sang Fei. Accordingly, the amount recognised as issued equity, which consists of share capital and share premium, has

been determined by adding to the issued equity of Sang Fei immediately before the completion of the Acquisition the cost of the

acquisition of the Winsan Group.
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12. Issued equity/share capital (Continued)

(a) Issued equity – Group (Continued)

(ii) Pursuant to the resolutions passed a special general meeting on 17 May 2005, the nominal value of the shares of the Company was

reduced from HK$0.01 each to HK$0.00125 each, and immediately after the reduction, every eight then issued shares with nominal

value of HK$0.00125 each were consolidated into one new share of HK$0.01 each. After the capital reorganisation, the issued share

capital of the Company comprises 1,083,560,000 shares HK$0.01 each. An amount of HK$75,849,000 standing to the credit of the

share capital account of the Company was cancelled and credited to the contributed surplus account.

(iii) On 18 March 2005, the board of directors of the Company resolved to apply the entire contributed surplus of HK$154,440,000 to set

off an equivalent amount of the accumulated losses. Upon completion of the capital reorganisation, an equivalent amount in the

contributed surplus account was then applied to set off against the entire remaining accumulated losses of the Company.

(b) Share capital – Company

Number of shares –

ordinary share of HK$0.01 each

Issued and

Authorised fully paid Share capital Share premium Total

At 1 January 2005 30,000,000,000 8,668,480,000 86,685 325,055 411,740

Capital reorganisation – (7,584,920,000) (75,849) – (75,849)

At 31 December 2005 30,000,000,000 1,083,560,000 10,836 325,055 335,891

At 1 January and 31 December 2006 30,000,000,000 1,083,560,000 10,836 325,055 335,891
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13. Other reserves

Group

Capital Surplus Share Translation

reserve reserves option reserve Total

(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c))

At 1 January 2005 (1,806) 21,010 – – 19,204

Share option granted – – 6,572 – 6,572

Appropriation from retained earnings – 4,982 – – 4,982

Currency translation differences – – – 4,304 4,304

At 31 December 2005 (1,806) 25,992 6,572 4,304 35,062

At 1 January 2006 (1,806) 25,992 6,572 4,304 35,062

Share option granted – – 3,654 – 3,654

Appropriation from retained earnings – 7,333 – – 7,333

Currency translation differences – – – 9,088 9,088

At 31 December 2006 (1,806) 33,325 10,226 13,392 55,137

(a) Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the exchange differences arising from paid-in capital paid by foreign currencies in the principal subsidiary, Sang

Fei.

(b) Surplus reserves

In accordance with the “Laws of the People’s Republic of China on Joint Ventures Using Chinese and Foreign Investment” and Sang Fei’s

Articles of Association, appropriations of the reserve fund and the enterprise expansion fund from profit after taxation have to be made prior

to profit distribution to the equity owners. The percentage of appropriation of reserve fund and the enterprise expansion fund is approved by

the board of directors of Sang Fei.

Upon approval from the board of directors of Sang Fei, the reserve fund can be used to offset against accumulated losses or to increase capital

while the enterprise expansion fund can be used to expand production and to increase capital.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances

as specified in section 54 thereof.

(c) Share option

On 25 October 2005, 28,450,000 options were granted to certain directors, employees and other participants at an exercise price of

HK$1.488 under the Share Option Scheme. 40% of the options granted are exercisable from 1 November 2005 to 31 October 2008, another

30% are exercisable from 1 November 2006 to 31 October 2009 and the remaining 30% are exercisable from 1 November 2007 to 31

October 2010. The options have an option term of 3 years commencing from the exercisable date. No option was exercised during the year.

Expense arising from the share option scheme recognised in administrative expenses during the year amounted to HK$3,654,000 (2005:

HK$6,572,000).
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13. Other reserves (Continued)

Company

Contributed

surplus Share option Total

At 1 January 2005 140,263 – 140,263

Capital Reorganisation 75,849 – 75,849

Utilisation of issued equity against accumulated losses (Note 12(a)(iii) (154,440) – (154,440)

Share option granted – 6,572 6,572

At 31 December 2005 61,672 6,572 68,244

At 1 January 2006 61,672 6,572 68,244

Share option granted – 3,654 3,654

At 31 December 2006 61,672 10,226 71,898

14. Trade and other payables

Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

Trade payables 511,472 966,990 – –

Other payables from related parties (Note 29(c)) 17,072 10,774 – –

Accrued expenses 47,205 30,583 2,744 3,947

Advance from customers 52,870 24,880 – –

Other payables 89,207 95,967 – –

717,826 1,129,194 2,744 3,947

The directors are of the opinion that the carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate their fair values. All trade and other payables are

non interest-bearing.
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14. Trade and other payables (Continued)

At 31 December 2006, the ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables was as follows:

2006 2005

Current to 30 days 487,812 943,177

31 – 60 days 14 2,561

Over 60 days 23,646 21,252

511,472 966,990

Included in the balance of trade payables to related parties amounted to HK$29,060,000 (2005: HK$56,034,000).

15. Short-term bank loans – Group

The bank loans as at 31 December 2005 were unsecured, repayable within one year and bear interest at the average borrowing rate of 4.674% per

annum, which had been repaid during the year.

The Group has undrawn borrowing facilities of approximately HK$1,000,000,000 as at 31 December 2006 (2005: HK$346,154,000). The facilities

are at fixed rate and expiring within one year which are subject to review at various dates during 2007.

16. Provision for warranty – Group

2006 2005

At 1 January 2,106 2,214

Additional provisions charged to income statement 21,089 11,516

Less: utilised during the year (10,561) (11,624)

At 31 December 12,634 2,106

The Group provides warranties on own branded and certain ODM products distributed by Sang Fei for end users in the PRC market and undertakes

to repair or replace items that fail to operate satisfactorily. Provisions have been recognised for expected warranty claims based on past experience

of the level of repairs and returns.

17. Other gains – net

2006 2005

Sales of samples and materials 5,355 11,828

Others (225) 1,994

5,130 13,822
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18. Expenses by nature

Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and marketing costs and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

2006 2005

Depreciation and amortisation expenses (Notes 6 and 7) 49,646 57,863

Employee benefit expenses (Note 19) 149,056 139,525

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 61,363 4,588

Raw materials and consumables used 3,065,667 4,320,966

Bad debt expense 82 570

(Reversal of)/written down of inventories to net realisable value (Note 9) (4,952) 21,024

Provision on warranty (Note 16) 21,089 11,516

Operating lease expenses on buildings 13,776 16,168

Research and development costs 34,667 15,830

Auditors’ remuneration 1,247 1,140

19. Employee benefit expense

2006 2005

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 137,000 126,653

Contributions to retirement schemes (Note (a) and (b)) 8,402 6,300

Share based compensation 3,654 6,572

149,056 139,525

(a) The Group operates a MPF for the eligible employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to MPF are set at 5% (2005: 5%) of employees’

salaries, including basic salaries and other cash allowances and expensed as incurred.

(b) The principal subsidiary, Sang Fei, participates in a defined contribution retirement scheme based on laws and regulations in the PRC. Each

employee covered by the scheme is entitled, after their retirement from Sang Fei, to a pension equal to the basis salary of the employees as

at their retirement dates in the PRC. The local government authority of the PRC is responsible for the pension liabilities to these retired

employees in the PRC. Sang Fei made monthly contributions to the retirement scheme at a minimum rate of 8% (2005: 8%) of the basis

salaries of employees in the PRC.
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20. Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

The remuneration of each of director for the year ended 31 December 2006 is set out below:

Salaries, Employer’s

allowance contribution

and benefits to pension Share-based

Name of Director Fees in kind scheme payment Total

Mr. Chen Zhaoxiong (Note a) – – – – –

Mr. Yang Xiaotang (Note b) – 167 8 – 175

Mr. Tong Baoan – 500 19 960 1,479

Mr. Fan Qingwu – 400 20 909 1,329

Mr. Hua Longxing – 404 – 909 1,313

Mr. Chan Kay Cheung 180 – – – 180

Mr. Wong Po Yan 180 – – – 180

Mr. Yin Yongli 180 – – – 180

540 1,471 47 2,778 4,836

During the year, no director has waived emolument or has agreed to waived the directors’ emolument (2005: nil).

Notes:

(a) Appointed on 11 April 2006

(b) Resigned on 11 April 2006.

The remuneration of each of director for the year ended 31 December 2005 is set out below:

Salaries, Employer’s

allowance contribution

and benefits to pension Share-based

Name of Director Fees in kind scheme payment Total

Mr. Yang Xiaotang – 600 30 924 1,554

Mr. Tong Baoan – 500 25 878 1,403

Mr. Fan Qingwu – 400 20 832 1,252

Mr. Hua Longxing – 404 – 832 1,236

Mr. Chan Kay Cheung 180 – – – 180

Mr. Wong Po Yan 180 – – – 180

Mr. Yin Yongli 180 – – – 180

540 1,904 75 3,466 5,985
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20. Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year include two directors (including supervisors) (2005: 2

directors) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2005: 3)

individual during the year are as follows:

2006 2005

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4,064 3,397

Bonuses 1,194 1,066

Contributions to retirement schemes 179 180

Share-based compensation 315 289

5,752 4,932

(c) The emoluments fell within the following band:

Number of individuals

2006 2005

HK$1,000,001 – HK$1,500,000 1 1

HK$1,500,001 – HK$2,000,000 – 2

HK$2,000,001 – HK$2,500,000 2 –

3 3

21. Finance income/(costs) – net

2006 2005

Interest income on short-term deposits 8,109 4,697

Interest on bank loans (6,444) (11,501)

Net finance income/(costs) 1,665 (6,804)
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22. Taxation

(a) Income tax expense

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement represents:

2006 2005

Current taxation – PRC enterprise income tax 6,760 10,112

Deferred taxation (4,402) (4,514)

2,358 5,598

(i) No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group has no assessable profit for the year (2005: nil).

(ii) The principal subsidiary, Sang Fei, is a foreign investment production enterprise established in Shenzhen Special Economic Zone in the

PRC, the prevailing PRC enterprise income tax rate is 15%. As approved by the tax authorities in 1998, Sang Fei is entitled to exemption

from income tax for two years followed by a 50% tax reduction for three years, commencing from the year ended 31 December 2000,

the first cumulative profit-making year net of losses carried forward. Sang Fei was certified as a high technology enterprise from 2002

and as approved by the tax authorities in 2004, Sang Fei is entitled to 50% tax reduction from enterprise income tax for further three

years starting from 2005. Consequently, enterprise income tax has been provided at the rate of 7.5% (2005: 7.5%) for the year.

(iii) The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate in the

PRC as follows:

2006 2005

Profit before income tax 71,517 89,946

Calculated at a taxation rate of 15% (2005: 15%) 10,728 13,492

Profit earned in the tax holiday period (9,804) (11,074)

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 313 317

Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognised 1,121 2,863

Income tax expense 2,358 5,598
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22. Taxation (Continued)

(b) Deferred taxation

The movement on the deferred tax assets during the year is as follows:

Group

2006 2005

At 1 January 4,514 –

Deferred taxation credited to the income statement 4,402 4,514

At 31 December 8,916 4,514

Representing deferred tax assets arising from:

Impairment of inventories 2,534 2,939

Accelerated depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,717 540

Others 1,665 1,035

8,916 4,514

The amounts shown in the balance sheet include the following:

Group

2006 2005

Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 months 7,251 3,479

Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12 months 1,665 1,035

8,916 4,514

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carrying-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through the

future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$3,984,000 (2005: HK$2,863,000) in respect

of losses amounted to HK$22,184,000 (2005: HK$16,363,000) that can be carried forward against future taxable income.

23. Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with the financial statements of the Company to the extent of the HK$58,692,000

(2005: HK$28,130,000).
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24. Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year ended 31

December 2006 of HK$43,276,000 (2005: HK$49,899,000) and the number of 1,083,560,000 (2005: 1,083,560,000 ordinary shares deemed to

have been in issue on 1 January 2005) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The exercise of the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme of the Company would have an anti-dilutive effect on the profit per share

for the year.

25. Dividends

A 2005 final dividend of HK$0.02 per ordinary share totalling HK$21,671,000 was paid in June 2006.

The directors proposed a 2006 final dividend of HK$0.016 per share (2005: HK$0.02) amounting to a total dividend of HK$17,337,000 in cash

which is subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

26. Cash generated from operations

2006 2005

Profit for the year 69,159 84,348

Adjustment for:

Income tax expense 2,358 5,598

Depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment 45,324 55,334

Amortisation of intangible assets 4,322 2,529

Loss/(profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment 6 (4 )

Interest income (8,109) (4,697)

Interest expense 6,444 11,501

Share-based compensation 3,654 6,572

Changes in working capital (excluding the effect of exchange differences on consolidation)

Inventories 111,232 (58,415)

Trade and other receivables 591,765 (153,553)

Trade and other payables (404,524) 365,730

Provision for warranty 10,528 (108)

Net cash inflow generated from operations 432,159 314,835
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27. Commitments

(a) Capital commitments – Group

At 31 December 2006, the Group’s capital commitment which were contracted but not provided for were as follows:

2006 2005

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and computer software 1,259 3,163

(b) Operating lease commitments

As at 31 December 2006, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for factories and

office premises as follows:

Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

Not later than one year 26,218 25,635 651 631

In the second to fifth years 19,774 27,808 – 626

45,992 53,443 651 1,257

28. Contingent liability

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities outstanding as at 31 December 2006 (2005: nil).

29. Related-party transactions and balances

Parties are considered to be related if one company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other company or exercise significant influence

over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or

common significant influence.

Save as disclosed other where in this report, significant related party transactions of the Group’s business are as follows:

During the year, the Group entered into transactions with companies under common control of:

– CEC, the ultimate holding company. These companies are denoted by * below;

– Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V. (“KPE”) (a company incorporated in Holland), the ultimate holding company of the minority shareholder with

significant influence on operation of the principal subsidiary, Sang Fei. These companies are denoted by # below:
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29. Related-party transactions and balances (Continued)

(a) Sales of products, samples and materials:

2006 2005

Sales of products:

Philips (China) Investment Co., Ltd. # 1,561,368 1,797,211

Philips France S.A.S. # 2,175 689,190

Philips Electronics Singapore Pte. Ltd. # 1,014,335 606,578

Philips Electronics Hong Kong Ltd. # 273,944 515,138

Shenzhen SED Coalitan Electronics Co., Ltd. * 2,448 –

Philips Electronics Trading Services (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. # 1,241 8,428

Philips Consumer Electronics B.V. # 949 –

Sales of samples and materials:

Philips Electronics Hong Kong Ltd. # 682 16,962

Philips (China) Investment Co., Ltd. # 34,494 40,143

Philips Consumer Electronics B.V. # 4,353 –

Philips Electronics Singapore Pte. Ltd. # 950 6,660

Shenzhen SED Coalition Electronics Co., Ltd. * 860 –

Shenzhen Sang Da Baili Electronics Co., Ltd. * 407 –

Shenzhen SED International Electronic Device Co., Ltd. * 713 –

Philips Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. # – 13,349

Shenzhen SED Industry Co., Ltd. * – 4,444

CEC Group, others * – 360

Philips Group, others # 24 929

Provision of maintenance services:

Philips (China) Investment Co., Ltd. # 25,338 –

Members of KPE and its subsidiaries (the “Philips Group”) and members of CEC and its group companies (the “CEC Group”) are the major

customers of the Group.
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29. Related-party transactions and balances (Continued)

(b) Other transactions

2006 2005

Receipt of interest:

China Electronics Corporation Finance Co., Ltd. * 214 5

Purchase of goods:

Philips Electronics Hong Kong Ltd. # 214,168 421,970

Shenzhen Sang Da Baili Electronics Co., Ltd. * 20,895 7,748

Philips France S.A.S. # 2,531 701

Philips (China) Investment Co., Ltd. # 1,085 12,208

Philips Electronics (Beijing) Co., Ltd. # 646 2,216

Philips Electronics Trading Services (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. # 946 971

CEC Group, others * 638 569

Philips Group, others # 42 312

Processing services:

Shenzhen Sang Da Baili Electronics Co., Ltd. * 6,645 4,867

Shenzhen SED Industry Co., Ltd. * 4,898 4,107

Fitment and decoration services:

Shenzhen SED Fitment & Decoration Co., Ltd. * 1,820 2,459

Canteen services:

Shenzhen Sang Da Baili Electronics Co., Ltd. * 10,918 11,273

Repair and maintenance services:

Shanghai SED ARC Co., Ltd. * 2,144 –

Shenzhen SED ARC Co., Ltd. * 628 1,493

Rental:

Shenzhen SED Industry Co., Ltd. * 7,473 7,283

China Great Wall Computer Shenzhen Co., Ltd. * 493 –

Great Wall Technology Company Limited * 655 –
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29. Related-party transactions and balances (Continued)

(c) Year-end balance arising from sales and other transactions

2006 2005

Trade receivables due from related parties:

Philips Electronics Singapore Pte. Ltd. # 223,114 212,073

Philips (China) Investment Co., Ltd. # 93,525 495,947

Philips Electronics Hong Kong Ltd. # 35,407 112,833

Philips Electronics Trading Services (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. # 551 3,928

Philips France S.A.S. # – 95,770

352,597 920,551

Other receivables due from related parties:

Philips Electronics Hong Kong Ltd. # 11,621 10,661

Philips (China) Investment Co., Ltd. # 10,035 4,974

Philips Consumer Electronics B.V. # 1,867 –

PCC Hong Kong Ltd. # – 369

Philips France S.A.S. # 164 4,969

Shenzhen SED International Electronic Device Co., Ltd. * 101 –

Shenzhen Sang Da Baili Electronics Co., Ltd. * 99 –

Philips Electronics Singapore Pte. Ltd. # 139 53

Philips Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. # – 5,553

Shenzhen SED Coalition Electronics Co., Ltd. * – 4

24,026 26,583

Prepayments:

Shenzhen Sang Da Baili Electronics Co., Ltd. * 6,205 –

Trade payables due to related parties:

Philips Electronics Hong Kong Ltd. # 16,263 39,010

Philips (China) Investment Co., Ltd. # 6,223 12,325

Philips France S.A.S. # 4,248 1,523

Shenzhen Sang Da Baili Electronics Co., Ltd. * 1,823 –

Philips Electronics Singapore Pte. Ltd. # 287 778

Philips Electronics (Beijing) Co., Ltd. # 180 608

Philips Electronics Trading Services (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. # 22 –

Langfang CEC Dacheng Electronic Co., Ltd. * 14 652

Shenzhen SED Coalition Electronics Co., Ltd. * – 1,138

29,060 56,034
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29. Related-party transactions and balances (Continued)

(c) Year-end balance arising from sales and other transactions (Continued)

2006 2005

Other payables due to related parties:

Philips France S.A.S. # 6,244 –

Philips Electronics Hong Kong Ltd. # 6,197 6,208

Philips Electronics Singapore Pte. Ltd. # 2,408 2,303

Shenzhen Sang Da Baili Electronics Co., Ltd. * 998 1,942

Shenzhen SED ARC Co., Ltd. * 448 –

Philips (China) Investment Co., Ltd. # 399 –

Philips Electronics Trading Services (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. # 285 292

Shenzhen SED Fitment and Decoration Co., Ltd. * 93 29

17,072 10,774

Advance from customers:

Shenzhen SED Coalition Electronics Co., Ltd. * 2,027 1,146

Deposits:

China Electronics Corporation Finance Co., Ltd. * 51,595 2,886

30. Event after the balance sheet date

On 16 March 2007, the Tenth National People’s Congress (“NPC”) plenary session passed the enterprise income tax law (“New Tax Law”) that

imposes a unified income tax rate of 25% for most enterprises. The New Tax Law will be effective 1 January 2008 and will have impact on the

preferential tax policies available in special economic and high technology zones in which Sang Fei is located. As the implementation measures on

the various transitional periods and rules for existing preferential tax policies have not yet been announced, the Group cannot reasonably estimate

the financial impact of the New Tax Law at this stage.
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Set out below is a summary of the financial information of the Group for the last five years.

RESULTS

Year ended 31 December

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(Note) (Note)

Sales 3,549,329 4,768,526 4,590,123 3,369 708

Profit /(loss) before income tax 71,517 89,946 14,959 (85,756) (48,255)

Income tax expenses (2,358) (5,598) (8,518) – –

Profit/(loss) for the year 69,159 84,348 6,441 (85,756) (48,255)

Attributable to :

Equity holders of the Company 43,276 49,899 (19,263) (85,756) (47,177)

Minority interests 25,883 34,449 25,704 – (1,078)

69,159 84,348 6,441 (85,756) (48,255)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(Note) (Note)

Total assets 1,335,642 1,936,037 1,660,344 7,534 76,283

Total liabilities (732,504) (1,367,642) (1,166,219) (74,757) (57,750)

Minority interests (138,775) (138,379) (124,884) – –

464,363 430,016 369,241 (67,223) 18,533

Note :

The financial information as at 31 December 2002 and 2003 and for the two financial years then ended as set out above are that of the Winsan Group, and are not comparable to the basis of

preparation of accounts as at 31 December 2004, 2005 and 2006 and for the three financial years then ended.
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